IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

THE FLORIDA BAR,

Complainant,

Supreme Court Case Nos. 77,351 and 78,243

v.

ELLIS S. SIMRING,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF

AND

INITIAL BRIEF ON CROSS-PETITION

ELLIS S. SIMRING Pro Se 3500 N. State Road 7, #333 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33319 (305) 485-7000

GARFIELD & ASSOCIATES, P.A. Attorneys for Respondent 3500 N. State Road 7, #333 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33319 (305) 485-7000

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Florida Bar will be referred to as "the Bar" or "the Florida Bar." Ellis Simring will be referred to as "Respondent" or "Mr. Simring." The symbol "RR" will be used to designate the report of the Referee and the symbol "TT" to designate the transcript of the final hearing. "Red Book" will designate be used to designate Respondents Reply to Complainant's Response to Respondents's Emergency Motion to Dissolve Emergency Suspension Order, Reply to Complainant's Response to Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration of Respondent's Motion to Consolidate, Respondent's Motion to For Final Determination, and attached Exhibits 1-22. All other documents and exhibits will be referred to by full title or by abbreviation as supplied in the text.

NOTE ON THE RECORD AND PLEADINGS

The "record" which constitutes this case file is voluminous. The facts and events involved are complex; it is impossible to fully address them within the four corners of a 50page brief. Any attempt to summarize would equally be an injustice.

Accordingly, it is Mr. Simring's position that the facts of the case and Mr. Simring's situation cannot possibly be understood without reading ALL of the Motions filed with this Court, ALL the character reference letters submitted on behalf of Mr. Simring, ALL the letters from Mr. Simring to Bar counsel which are on file, and finally, the entire transcript of the final hearing before Judge Stevenson. A full appraisal of all these documents will render Respondent's Brief self-explanatory and will reveal the untenability of the Bar's positions concerning the alleged "theft" and any punishment based upon "theft.

In order for the Court to have easy reference to the documents referred to in this Brief, the Respondent has taken the liberty of attaching those which are of vital importance as Appendices. This does not diminish the importance of the documents contained in the Court file. Respondent has however repeated certain statements and defenses previously made in prior documents in an effort and attempt to have this Brief complete for review.

-vi-

Mr. Simring calls the Courts attention to two documents in particular which were filed with the Supreme Court and from which the Court can glean a better understanding of the case:

1. Respondent's Motion for Rehearing, Petition to Dissolve Order of the Supreme Court, Petition to Amend Order of the Supreme Court [hereinafter **Motion for Rehearing**] [Exhibit 1 in Red Book and attached as Appendix 1].

2. Respondents Reply to Complainant's Response to Respondents's Emergency Motion to Dissolve Emergency Suspension Order, Reply to Complainant's Response to Respondent's Motion for Reconsideration of Respondent's Motion to Consolidate, Respondent's Motion to For Final Determination [hereinafter **Motion** for **Final Determination**] [Red Book which is herein incorporated by reference]

STATEMENT OF THE CASES AND THE FACTS

Mr. Simring has been indefinitely suspended from the practice of law as the result of an Order of Temporary Suspension filed on January 14, 1991, based on a Petition for Temporary Suspension filed by the Florida Bar. One year later, this appeal involves two consolidated cases. Case number 77,351 involves a five-count complaint alleging certain acts of misconduct relating to Mr. Simring's trust account. Case number 78,243 relates to Mr. Simring's handling of settlement proceeds from the representation of Radcliff Barnett on a personal injury action. Both matters were consolidated for trial and were heard before the Honorable W. Matthew Stevenson, Referee, on October 3- 4, 1991. The Referee rendered his report on November 23, 1991. After a two-month delay, the Bar filed its Petition for Review on January 31, 1992.¹

Case # 77,351

The Florida Bar, without conducting an audit, without conducting an investigation, without making any inquiries of the Respondent, the bookkeeper, or other necessary persons concerning

¹ The incredible delay in prosecuting this case has created a personal and financial nightmare for Mr. Simring. So far, after more than a year, Mr. Simring has been suspended from the practice of law without a final determination of his case. The Supreme Court has recently declared that such delays in temporary suspension cases implicate due process concerns, and has ruled that final hearings shall be heard within 90 days of appointment of a Referee. The Florida Bar Re: Amendments to the Rules Regulating the Florida Bar, 1-3.7; 3-5.1(g): 3-5.2: 14-1.1 and Chapter 15, 16 F.L.W. S743. 5743-45 (Fla. Nov. 14, 1991).

the source and ownership of the monies in the trust account, and considering the comingling of \$187,000 which was admitted by the Respondent, is attempting to prove a case of theft. They are doing this on the testimony of their only witness, Mark Widlansky, who admitted that he conducted a bank reconciliation, used none of the acceptable guidelines in the industry, and admittedly was unable to reach any conclusion that Respondent was guilty of theft.

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Referee found Mr. Simring guilty on four of six counts as alleged in the Complaint and recommended an 18-month suspension.

As to Count I, the Referee found Mr. Simring not guilty of stealing client funds. However, the Referee found, <u>as Mr.</u> <u>Simring had stipulated</u>, that proper trust account procedures had not been followed. The Referee found Mr. **Simring** guilty of **the** following Rule violations:² Rules 4-1.15(b) (relating to client

² The Referee found Mr. Simring "guilty" for each Count, except Count IV, of violating **Rule 3-4.2**, **Rule 4-8.4(a)**, and **Rule 4-1.15(d)**. Rule 3-4.2 states that violating the Rules of Professional Conduct is a cause for discipline. Rule 4-8.4(a) states that a lawyer shall not violated the Rules of Professional Conduct. Rule 4-1.15(d) states that a lawyer shall comply with the rules regulating trust accounts.

Mr. Simring respectfully suggests that these are NOT properly considered as separate Rule violations. To say that it is a separate violation of the Rules to violate the Rules is patently absurd. If it were so, then every violation would in fact be a double violation--one for the substantive offense and another for violating the rule in the first place. To suggest that a lawyer is somehow more guilty for violating the rule that prohibits violating the Rules is simply Doublespeak. Indeed, carried to its logical extreme, any violation results in an

notification of receipt of funds) and 5-1.1 (relating to trust account procedures). However, there was no evidence at trial from which the Referee could find that Mr. Simring failed to promptly notify a client upon receipt of funds and thus there was no violation of Rule 4-1.15(b).

On Count I The Referee found Mr. Simring not guilty of violating Rule 3-4.3 the commission of an act contrary to honesty and justice); Rule 3-4.4 (criminal activity as a cause for discipline); Rule 4-8.4(b) (a lawyer shall not commit a criminal act); and Ru e 4-8.4(c) (a lawyer shall not engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation).

As to Count 11, the Referee found Mr. Simring guilty of not having an interest bearing trust account in violation of Rules 5-1.1(d). The Referee did not clarify that interest bearing trust accounts were not mandated by law until October 1, 1989. TT at 260. Thus, the Referee failed to account for the effect of Mr. Simring's impairment at this time in taking note of such a rule change. Had Mr. Simring been aware that the Rules had changed, he would have acted accordingly. Surely, Mr. Simring had nothing to gain by not taking such action.

endless logarithm of violations: a violation of the rule against violating the Rules necessarily entails violating the rule against violating the Rules. And so on.

Accordingly, Mr. Simring will not list the alleged violations of these three rules in his summary of the Counts.

-3-

As to Count 111, the Referee found, and the parties stipulated, that Mr. Simring commingled personal funds with that of his clients. The Referee did not cite a specific Rule prohibiting such conduct because there is none.

As to Count IV, the Referee found Mr. Simring guilty of failing to produce trust account records in violation of Rules 5-1.2(b), and 5-1.2(c). The Referee did <u>not</u> find that Mr. Simring failed to keep such records because the testimony at trial was that such records <u>were</u> kept but that they were disposed of when the partnership dissolved on June 30, 1990.

As to Count V, the Referee found Mr. Simring <u>not guilty</u> of any Rule violations with respect to a second bank account.

Case # 78,243 (Radcliff Barnett)

As to this case, the Referee found that Mr. Simring violated Rules 4-1.15(a), (b), (c) and Rule 5-1.1. (The facts are discussed below). Mr. Simring contests the finding as to Rule 4-1.15(b) because the testimony at trial was that Barnett was notified when the funds were received. TT at 183. The Bar did not prove otherwise. Mr. Simring also contests the finding as to Rule 4-1.15(c) because that rule speaks only to property, not cash, and there was no property at issue in this case.³

-4-

³ Subsection (a) of Rule 4-1.15 speaks specifically to "funds **and** property." Subsection (c), however, only refers to "property."

Mr. Simring takes exception to the Bar's version of the "facts" relating to this case.⁴

The testimony at trial was that Barnett's personal injury award was <u>not</u> kept in the trust account in order to protect such funds from levy by the I.R.S.. Mr. Simring's practice was rapdily deteriorating at this time and the I.R.S. was owed partnership taxes. The I.R.S. special agent informed Mr. Simring that he was going to levy on the trust account.⁵ When Radcliff Barnett's check was received during this period, Mr. Simring deposited the check in the trust account, but placed \$35,0000 <u>in</u> <u>cash</u> in escrow with a fellow attorney from New York, Mr. Harold Rubalow. TT at 178-180.⁶ This testimony was corroborated by Mr. Rubalow at the final hearing. TT at 43-48.⁷

⁴ The Bar's allegations as to shortages in each client account in Case # 77,351 (which the Referee did not find) are addressed in Part I(b), <u>infra</u>.

⁵ The Court may take issue with Mr. Simring's testimony that the I.R.S. had threatened to levy on his trust account. However, the Bar admitted at trial that the I.R.S. does in fact levy on funds in attorney/client trust accounts and actually seizes those funds. TT at 336; Appendix 3. Any practicing attorney or I.R.S. agent will testify that this is true--even though it is not allowed. Mr. Simring did not want Barnett to have to petition the I.R.S. to get his money back so it was placed in escrow.

⁶ Mr. Simring testified that this cash was on hand from cash payment in 600 immigration cases being handled by his office. TT at 190.

⁷ Mr. Simring also testified that although he was entitled to a 40% fee, plus cost, that he only took a \$7,000 fee and used \$3,000 to cover costs. TT at 171. (The total settlement on the Barnett case was a structured settlement of approximately \$200,000 to be paid to the infant over the course of ten or

The Bar informed Mr. Simring's attorney by letter dated July 2, **1991**, that if Mr. Rubalow were holding the money that Mr. Simring would be cleared of theft charges. Appendix at 2. The Bar received Mr. Rubalow's testimony at trial and did not rebut this testimony. Moreover, the Bar has admitted <u>to this Court</u> that Mr. Simring <u>did</u> have the money, that it was <u>not</u> spent for personal use, and that Barnett did in fact receive the money. Initial Brief at 16.⁸

Mr. Simring also explained why Barnett was not immediately paid. The uncontroverted testimony was that Mr. Simring was required to obtain Probate Court approval in order to disburse personal injury settlement proceeds to a minor even though the Circuit Court had approved the settlement. TT at 174-175. The Bar has in its file remittances from the Probate Court showing at least 6 or 7 failed attempts by Mr. Simring to correctly file the necessary papers. TT at 175-176. When the papers were finally



fifteen years. Respondent waived all fees on the structured portion of the settlement to expedite the matter and to assure that the infant would be protected. Respondent only took a small portion of the initial \$45,000 although entitled to fees in excess of what he accepted.)

⁸ The Bar also states on page 16 of its Brief that Mr. Simring was attempting to extort money from his former partner, Bruce Glaskin. The actual testimony was that Bruce had advised that he would repay all personal monies taken from the trust account during this period because the monies were used to repay Bruce's immigration clients. When Bruce failed to make the payments on Barnett, Mr. Simring tried to get Bruce to live up to his obigations--not to extort him. TT at 187-188.

filed correctly, Mr. Simring made all attempts to expedite payment of the funds to Barnett.

The Bar sets forth a list of disbursements in its Brief allegedly made by Mr. Simring against the Barnett trust money. Mr. Simring has explained that Barnett's money was not in the trust account, it was with Mr. Rubalow. Moreover, the Bar admits these facts in its Brief: TT at 15-16. If \$22,000 in disbursements were made against such monies from March 5, 1990 to May 30, 1990, how does the Bar account for its own statement that Barnett's \$35,000 was in Mr. Simring's possession in August of 1991? Initial Brief at 15-16.

In trying to win this case at any cost (see discussion below), the Bar overlooks its own admission: **the Barnett money was not in the trust account. Hence, the disbursements from trust never occurred.** The Bar fails to understand Mr. Simring's testimony, as explained <u>infra</u> at Part I(b), that Barnett's name-as well as the names of other clients--was placed on the bottom of checks written out of personal funds for bookkeeping purposes <u>only</u> and did not reflect that the money was taken from client funds. This was because in order to keep track of the monies a client's name had to be listed on the ledger card. <u>See</u> Appendix 4.

In conclusion, the Referee found that the Bar failed to establish theft of client funds, because there was no such theft. At worst, the facts establish a case of money substitution to

-7-

protect a client.' Furthermore, the Bar fails to accept that Mr. Simring was suffering severe emotional and physical impairments during the time in question and that none of this would have happened but for such impairments.

Based on the above assessment of the Referee's findings, the <u>only</u> substantive Rule violations found by the Referee that are supported by the record relate to commingling under Chapter **5** (Rules Regulating Trust Accounts) and failing to place client money in trust under Rule **4-1.15(a)**.

Mr. Simring further objects to the Referee's failure to properly assess and credit the mitigating evidence presented at the final hearing and the admission of evidence from the Bar's <u>sole</u> witness, Mark Widlansky, who testified that he did not perform an audit, TT at 123, that he did not conduct any independent inquiry or investigation, TT at 139, 252, 310, and who admitted that he could not state whether any money was stolen. TT at 130. Mr. Simring directs the Court to Respondent's Cross Petition for Review which sets forth further objections in greater detail.

The Bar's Efforts "To Win At Any Cost"

-8-

⁹ Furthermore, the Bar's allegation in footnote 13, page 22, that Mr. Simring admits to engaging in tax fraud has no foundation in basis or fact. The Bar confirmed that Mr. Simring has paid taxes on all his income.

At the time the initial letter of complaint was received by Mr. Simring, he was interviewed by Mark Widlansky and Linda Amidon. During this initial interview, Mr. Simring admitted comingling funds and explained to the Bar's representatives that he was having personal problems during the past few years, that the law practice of Simring & Glaskin, P.A., was dissolved a few months prior thereto, and that although trust account records were meticulously maintained in addition to clients' files, that many of these records were either destroyed or lost.

The full extent of the personal problems experienced by Mr. Simring are fully set forth in the Petition for Rehearing attached as Appendix 1. Sometime after meeting with the Bar's representatives, Mr. Simring subjected himself, pursuant to Stipulation, to a psychological evaluation as more fully discussed herein. In his naivete, Mr. Simring believed that the Bar was attempting to make an earnest effort to resolve the Complaint.

It appears that "the only ethic of the Florida Bar is to win at any cost." These <u>allegations</u> are not made lightly and are being stated reluctantly for the Court to understand that instead of an effort of conciliation, the Bar turned this into a full and complete adversarial contest. In doing so, as far as the Bar was concerned this was a "no holds barred situation." IN ORDER TO WIN AT ANY COST, BECAUSE THE BAR HAS NO FACTUAL OR LEGAL ARGUMENT TO PUT FORTH, THE BAR HAS RESORTED TO UNDERHANDED.

-9-

UNCONSCIONABLE, AND INFLAMMATORY CONDUCT AS DEMONSTRATED BY THE FOLLOWING:¹⁰

A. The Bar does not refer to the fact that during a major portion of this alleged investigation there was a claim that there were funds in the trust account belonging to Sal Autera. After a deposition of Mr. Autera, it became clear to the Bar the mistakes they made in their bookkeeping procedures and they withdrew their claim that there were client funds belonging to Sal Autera in the trust account. This resulted in Mr. Simring's letter to Kevin Tynan of June 27, 1991 which is self-explanatory. Appendix 10 (Exhibit 8 in Red Book).

B. The Bar is attempting to state that Mr. Simring should be disbarred because of an alleged attitude of "omnipotence and self-assurance." It is suggested that a psychological profile has never been a prerequisite for membership in the Florida Bar. Whether such an attitude makes one a better attorney, or not, cannot be a matter of inquiry in these proceedings. To hold otherwise would be to jeopardize the license of most successful trial attorneys. Mr. Simring would rather be as Dr. Winters

¹⁰ The purpose of these comments is not to demean or embarrass Bar counsel. Kevin Tynan, unfortunately the persecutor in this case, does not have and has not yet obtained the maturity and experiences in life to be empowered with the ability to destroy a person's life. A review of his Brief, which distorts the facts and misuses the psychological evaluation, indicates certain "intellectual dishonesty" and a lack of discernment. In his misplaced and misguided effort "to win at any cost," in Mr. Simring's opinion, Mr. Tynan has broken every moral and ethical violation of human rights "in the book."



described than, as Mark Twain stated. "Deep down in his heart, no man much respects himself."

C. Referring to Appendix 5, the Court in its review can note the uncontrolled and compelling power of the Bar to monitor an attorney's life. Here is a staff attorney with no particular mandated powers that are anywhere recorded who has decided upon himself in one letter not to discipline Mr. Simring and in another to indicate a course of continuous harassment.

D. The Bar's "opposition by rote" of everything Respondent attempted to do to resolve the situation. This is exhibited very clearly in Exhibits 9 and 10 of the Red Book.

E. The attempt by Respondent to obtain a qualified psychologist for the independent psychological evaluation (IPE). Appendix 6; Exhibit 7 in the Red Book. In lieu of accepting the recommended psychologist and furthermore with no discussion in an attempt to agree on a psychologist, the Bar requested that Judge Stevenson appoint one. The result was that Dr. Barbara Winter, who conducted the IPE, had no previous experience, knowledge of attorney's problems, or familiarity with trust accounts. This will be discussed further in this Brief.

F. The Bar takes out of context the loan from Rostyslaw Kindratiw and takes issue with the statement made during trial that Mr. Simring told Mr. Kindratiw to "sue me." The transcript reveals significant surrounding circumstances of this loan including the fact that Mr. Kindratiw is still a friend of Mr. Simring's whom he is in contact with very often. TT at 196.

-11-

G. The Bar makes issue of the fact that there is no written documentation concerning the Barnett funds given to Harold Rubalow. The trial reflects that there were letters and receipts passed between Mr. Simring and Mr. Rubalow, copies of which Mr. Tynan has in his file to which he referred as being the letter of March 19, 1990. TT at 182. It is disturbing that Mr. Tynan picks, chooses, and selects indiscriminately from certain portions of the trial transcript, out of context, for the purpose of bolstering his case.

H. Kevin Tynan refers in his Brief to the violation of the Order of Temporary Suspension. Again, this cannot be taken out of context and there is insufficient space in this document to reargue this matter. Answering documents were filed with this Court which clearly set forth reasons why the Order was violated, if in fact it was. There was no intent to violate the Order and Mr. Simring had no knowledge that it was being violated because of the acts alleged.

I. Mr. Martin Roth, over the past 15 years, referred numerous cases to Mr. Simring's office. The Florida Bar, for no apparent reason other than to infer impropriety, made point to refer to Mr. Roth as "a disbarred New York attorney." Initial Brief at 15 n.3.

The obligations of a prosecuting attorney for an administrative agency and the Justices of the Supreme Court is to balance the legalities of what is right and what is wrong.

-12-

Why is the Bar prosecuting this case with such vigor? The answer is because the Bar, and Kevin Tynan, are using the system unfairly. Kevin Tynan walked into the Referee's courtroom a winner based on the stipulation of commingling by Mr. Simring. He had nothing to lose by trying this case. Mr. Simring was already suspended without a hearing and without judicial review. The Bar knew that the Supreme Court rarely reduces a Referee's recommendation and often increases it. <u>See Appendix 7</u> (Letter containing Final Argument to Judge Stevenson dated 11-8-91--Exhibit 22 in Red Book.)

Now the Bar has two more advantages in filing its Petition for Review with the Supreme Court. First, they have "a shot" at getting a more severe sanction. And, second, if nothing else, they are able to delay these proceedings for another six months while Mr. Simring remains suspended. Mr. Simring respectfully but firmly submits that the Bar is trying to win this case at any cost to cover-up its own ineptitude and myopia in not properly investigating this case, not taking into condsideration the defenses raised, and by making no effort to resolve this situation.

-13-

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Referee's findings of rule violations were clearly not erroneous. *Mr*. Simring has maintained since the first day of investigations that he did not steal client monies but that improper bookkeeping procedures created the misapprehension that there were shortages in the attorney/client trust account. Mr. Simring has explained each and every allegation of "theft" as to each and every client account. The Bar's allegations of "shortages" were compounded by their own faulty "audit" of Mr. Simring's trust account records.

Mr. Simring has admitted, however, from the first, that he commingled personal funds in an attorney/client trust account and that he did not properly manage his trust account.

Disbarment is only appropriate on a finding of intentional conversion of client funds. The Referee expressly found that "the Bar has failed to meet its burden of proof in establishing an intentional theft of client monies." RR at **3**. The Supreme Court has repeatedly said that it will not substitute its judgment for that of the Referee unless the Referee's findings are clearly erroneous or lacking in evidentiary support. The Bar has presented absolutely no evidence to show that Mr. Simring stole client monies. The Bar attempts to prove that the Referee's findings are erroneous based on evidence of "paper shortages." The Bar's own "auditor," however, testified that he did not know if client monies were stolen. Disbarment is not warranted by the Referee's findings of commingling, especially in light of the mitigating evidence in this case.

-14-

Although the Referee issued a detailed report, the report does not give due consideration to the mitigating evidence presented by Mr. Simring through his own testimony, the testimony--both oral and written--of doctors and psychologists, and the testimony of Mr. Simring's eldest son. The entire thrust of Mr. Simring's case at trial was that during the period in question he was impaired due to the suicide attempts of his youngest son and his own physical ailments, including anemia, low blood count, chronic flu, and Chronic Fatigue Syndrome. Certainly, given the severe nature of this impairment and its effect on Mr. Simring, his punishment should be mitigated accordingly. See Appendix 8.

Finally, Mr. Simring should not be liable for \$ 9,000 in costs incurred by the Bar in unnecessarily prosecuting a nonexistent case of theft. As discussed above, Mr. Simring admitted to commingling and inadequate trust account bookkeeping from Day One. Indeed, the Bar and Mr. Simring entered a Joint Stipulation in February 1991 with the intent that Mr. Simring was to submit to a psychological evaluation and that if found no longer to be impaired, he would be reinstated. Despite the findings of impairment by the examiner, the Bar incurred <u>ten more</u> <u>months</u> of expenses seeking to prove an allegation of theft which Mr. Simring has always denied, for which there are no victims, and which the Referee determined to be unfounded. Mr. Simring should not have to bear the costs of the Bar's unnecessary persecution and fruitless quest.

-15-

ARGUMENT

I. THE REFEREE'S FINDINGS ARE NOT CLEARLY ERRONEOUS. MR. SIMRING DID NOT STEAL CLIENT MONIES AND THE EVIDENCE DOES NOT ESTABLISH OTHERWISE.

The Bar has the burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence that a lawyer is guilty of specific rule violations. <u>The Fla. Bar v. Burke</u>, 578 So.2d 1099, 1102 (Fla. 1991); <u>The</u> <u>Fla. Bar v. Hooper</u>, 509 So.2d 289, 290 (Fla. 1987). The Referee's function is to weigh the evidence and determine its sufficiency, and the Court does not substitute its judgment for that of the Referee unless the Referee's findings are clearly erroneous or lacking in evidentiary support. <u>E.g.</u> <u>The Fla. Bar</u> <u>v. Scott</u>, 566 So.2d 765, 767 (Fla. 1990); <u>The Fla. Bar v. Hooper</u>, 509 So.2d 289, 290-91 (Fla. 1987). Thus, the Bar bears the burden of establishing that the Referee's findings are erroneous, unlawful, or unjustified. R. Reg. Fla. Bar 3-7.7(c)(5).

In his report, Judge Stevenson made the following finding regarding the Bar's allegations of theft:

Although the aforesaid conduct violated several Rules of Professional Conduct and Rules Regulating Trust Accounts <u>the Bar failed</u> to meet its burden of proof in establishing an <u>intentional theft of client monies</u>. Petitioner seeks to raise a presumption of theft by repeated instances of shortages in the trust account over an extended period of time. However, <u>Petitioner's case must fail in that</u> <u>reqard</u>, <u>especially</u> where no injured party was <u>presented</u>, no client complained to the Bar, nor was any evidence presented that any client in fact failed to receive any money due.

RR at 3 (emphasis added). In accordance with the above-stated rules, this finding of fact comes clothed with a presumption of correctness that will not be disturbed unless clearly erroneous.

-16-

Mr. Simring's position has remained constant from the start of his ordeal with the Florida Bar. Mr. Simring has explained that NO CLIENT FUNDS WERE MISSING FROM THE TRUST ACCOUNT. ALL MONIES SPENT FOR PERSONAL USE WERE EITHER PERSONAL FUNDS OR FEES EARNED. ANY APPARENT "SHORTAGES" WERE CAUSED BY INADEQUATE BOOKKEEPING PROCEDURES ON THE PART OF MR. SIMRING DURING THE PERIOD IN QUESTION, <u>COMPOUNDED</u> BY THE BAR'S OWN FAULTY "AUDIT." See Motion for Rehearing (Appendix 1).¹¹

The Bar makes two critical statements in its Brief which are not only patently false and misrepresentative of the evidence adduced at trial, but they are also misleading, inflammatory, and calculated to manipulate the facts of a case "to win at any cost." They are:

1. The Bar's auditor was able to formulate certain opinions on the status of Respondent's trust account. (Initial Brief at 4.)

2. At trial, the Bar proved that the shortages were caused by Respondent's use of trust monies for personal obligations, rather than the purposes for which they were entrusted. Respondent admitted as much and the referee so found. (Initial Brief at 8).



¹¹ Mr. Simring has acknowledged from the start that his bookeeping procedures did not meet the standards for attorney/client trust accounts as set forth in the Rules Regulating the Florida Bar. In addition, Mr. Simring recognizes that he was in error and that any fees earned from clients should have been placed <u>first</u> in an operating account prior to being spent for personal use. Mr. Simring is not contesting any issues pertaining to these matters with reference to the findings of the Referee.

This section of Respondent's brief will address solely these two points to demonstrate their utter falsity and thus show that the Bar's case must fail here--just as it did before the Referee.

As a preliminary matter, however, it is first incumbent to address the Referee's pejorative reference to Mr. Simring's destruction of his bank records. THESE RECORDS WERE <u>NOT</u> DESTROYED TO INTERFERE WITH THE BAR'S INVESTIGATION AND ANY ASSERTION TO THAT EFFECT IS UNTRUE. Mr. Simring destroyed his bank account records <u>before</u> he had any notice of a Bar investigation. The records were destroyed because Mr. Simring <u>knew</u> that <u>all</u> clients had been paid and he had closed out his trust account.¹²

A. The Bar "auditor" testified that he could not state whether client funds were stolen.

The only evidence presented at trial by the Bar was (1) the testimony of Mark Widlansky, a Bar "auditor" and (2) Mr. Widlansky's reconciliations of Mr. Simring's trust account. The reconciliations are discussed below at Part I(b).

The Bar makes the following statement in its brief: The Bar's auditor was able to formulate certain opinions on the status of Respondent's trust account. (Initial Brief at 4).

-18-

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