FILED SID J. WHITE				
	MAR	23	1992	
CLERK, SUPREME COURT				
Rv			$\sim$	

Chief Deputy Clerk

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

THE FLORIDA BAR,

Complainant,

v.

Supreme Court Case No. 77,136; 77,351 & 78,243

ELLIS S. SIMRING,

Respondent.

REPLY TO ANSWER BRIEF ON CROSS-PETITION FOR REVIEW

L

ELLIS S. SIMRING 3500 North State Road 7, #333 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33319 305-485-7000

Argument

نچ ه نړ ن

## ARGUMENT

A review of The Florida Bar's Reply Brief and Answer Brief on Cross-Petition for Review (hereinafter referred to as "Reply Brief") requires a short and brief response.

The Court presently has before it all of the case law necessary to determine the legal issues.

The Court has before it all of the arguments that can conceivably be made by any of the parties and, except for a few thoughts which will be expressed in this document, needs no further argument and discussion.

The Court has before it all documents in evidence necessary to determine the issues for both The Florida Bar on their claims and on behalf of the Respondent on his claim of impairment.

The Florida Bar's Reply Brief merely repeats and reiterates all arguments and misstatements previously made.

Kevin Tynan again has taken the opportunity of creating false conclusions from the facts as they were elicited during the trial and again is using his Reply Brief as a calculated attempt to mislead the Court to believe that certain admissions were made and that certain assumptions are obvious. All this was addressed by Respondent in previous documents.

There is nothing new contained in The Florida Bar's Reply Brief which requires a response except some comment should be made concerning The Florida Bar's position:

1. Respondent, contrary to the allegations in the last three lines on page 13 of The Florida Bar's Reply Brief, does not consider misuse of an attorney's trust account as trivial and minor. Respondent's position is that the misuse of the trust account by co-mingling of funds does not warrant the "death penalty."

2. On page 3 of The Florida Bar's Reply Brief reference is made to the fact that Respondent forgot that Respondent was a witness called by The Florida Bar and the deposition of Ronald Schain was introduced into evidence. It escapes Respondent why Mr. Tynan would make reference to this since there is no further reference in his document to any testimony given by Respondent or by Ronald Schain to support The Florida Bar's position.

3. On page 19 of the Reply Brief, Kevin Tynan states, "It is the Respondent's belief that this impairment absolves him of any wrongdoing whatsoever." Respondent submits to this Court that he has always admitted co-mingling and has always advised The Florida Bar and the Court that he should be in some manner punished for these activities. Respondent never in any document, in any conversation, or at anytime has claimed that the "impairment absolves him of any wrongdoing whatsoever."

4. It is statements, allegations, and assertions such as this which attempt to mislead the Court. To further compound the

tactics of Kevin Tynan and his personal attacks on Respondent's character, the Court will note that Mr. Tynan has used the word "theft" or "thief" more than 16 times in his Reply Brief, and has alleged to the fact that monies were stolen many more times. It is suggested that Mr. Tynan believes that repetition of untrue facts will create a cloud in the Court's mind so that the truth will be obscured.

5. Respondent has in many previous documents made unkind statements concerning the tactics of The Florida Bar, the condonation of those tactics by the Supreme Court, and in general of Mr. Tynan's lack of appropriate experience and ability in representing The Florida Bar. The purpose of these statements was informative and constructive rather than vindictive. Respondent attempted to advise the Supreme Court of the abuse of power of The Florida Bar, the lack of due process afforded Respondent and as presumptuous as it may sound, the statements were made so that the Supreme Court may in the future amend its procedures concerning situation such as this.

6. It must again be brought to the Court's attention that the Respondent's main and only defense to co-mingling was impairment. In Kevin Tynan's 23 page Reply Brief, I believe he refers to the defense of impairment in less than one half of a page

and in that space minimizes the effect that the impairment had on the Respondent. The Florida Bar appears to be evading and avoiding this issue.

7. Respondent would like to, if possible, simplify his position. If the monies remaining in the trust account, referred to as Schenck, Dauria/Accetturo, Alan Wilhelm, and others, were "client funds", then the fact is that the Respondent was guilty of writing checks against these funds. If these funds were not as Respondent alleges "client funds", then there are no paper shortages from which any inference can be made of theft.

8. The facts are that none of the monies in the trust account against which checks were written were "client funds". Respondent submits that the record is absolutely clear on this position and that no proof to the contrary was introduced at the trial.

9. Common sense would dictate as has previously been set forth that no client who was entitled to be paid would allow these funds to remain in the trust account unless the funds did not belong to the client and were in fact monies belonging to Respondent.

10. On page 7 of The Florida Bar's Reply Brief, he refers to "no credible testimony". It is respectfully submitted

that it is the Bar's obligation to provide testimony by a fair preponderance of the credible evidence which it has failed to do. It is also respectfully submitted that in the case of theft, the Bar should be required to provide evidence beyond a reasonable doubt.

11. "Sloppy and intentionally improper" bookkeeping as was found by the Referee caused by the impairment which was not disputed should require disciplinary action not inconsistent with the suggestions made previously of a short period of suspension.

12. The Respondent admitted in letters, orally, and in pleadings co-mingling of funds. If these admissions were admissions of additional acts of misconduct which overlap each other, it can then be assumed that Respondent admitted those acts. The fact is Respondent never denied these acts nor any of the findings of the Referee and should not be responsible for costs.

13. The Court has a choice. It can either review all documents before it including "character letters" to obtain a complete picture of this case or it can ignore the "character letters" which would deprive the Court of substantially necessary information referring to the Respondent's character. Respondent submits that the interest of justice would dictate reviewing the "character letters."

The Respondent submits this as his Reply Brief and further suggests that the Court has before it everything necessary to make a fair and appropriate determination of this case.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished by mail this 20th day of March, 1992 to:

Kevin P. Tynan, Esq. The Florida Bar 5900 North Andrews Avenue, #835 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

John F. Harkness, Jr., Esq. The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300 John T. Berry, Esq. The Florida Bar 650 Apalachee Parkway Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300

ELLIS S. SIMRING 3500 North State Road 7, #333 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33319 305-485-7000